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To the Members of Oriflame India Private Limited

M

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Qriflame India Private Limited (the "Company”) which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes tc the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its loss and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Bas;s for ':Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards' on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's directors’ report, but does not include
the financial statements and auditor's repori(s) thereon.

Our opinion on the financia! statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
* statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this olher
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management‘é and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial slatements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Oriflame India Private Limited

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and desigr, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's abilily to continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matlers related
to going concern and using the going concern basis ot accounting untess the Board of Directors either
intends lo liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 8o so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsihilittgs--fqr the Audit of the Financial Sta'teménts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our apinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or efror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in 2 manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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_ Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements. _

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued).

Oriflame India Private Limited

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those except that the back-up of the books of account
and other relevant books and papers in electronic mode has not been kept on servers physically
located in India on a daily basis.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the statement of cash flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

the modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph
2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B".

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 33 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 39(C) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behaif of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Uttimate Beneficiares.

(iy The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 39(D) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
Oriflame India Private Limited

Funding Parties ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Uitimate Beneficiaries.

(iil) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (i) above,
contain any material misstatement,

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f.  Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account, however, the feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility has not been enabled. Consequently, we are unable to comment on audit trail feature
of the said software.

Further, In respect of the accounting software used for maintaining the books of account relating
to payroll, which is operated by a third party software service provider, in the absence of reporting
on compliance with the audit trail requirements in the independent auditor’s report of the service
organisation, we are unable to comment whether audit trail feature of the said software was
enabled and operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software
or whether there were any instances of the audit trail feature having been tampered with.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16)
of the Act which are reguired to be commented upon by us.

ForBS R&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

5

B
Shweta Kumar

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 509822
Date: 30 September 2024 ICAI UDIN:24509822BKHRGG3613
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Oriflame India Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

() (8) (A) The Company has maintained proper recards showing full particulars, including quantitative

(B)
(i) (b)

(d)

©)

(ii) (a)

(b)

(iil)

(iv)

v

(vi)

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified
every year. In accordance with this programme, all property, plant and equipment were verified
during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory, except goods-in-transit has been physically verified by the management during
the year.For goods-in-transit subsequent evidence of receipts has been linked with inventory
records. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and
coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on
verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the
aggregate of each class of inventory

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits
in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185
and 1886 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Oriflame India Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

(vii) (2)

prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the products
manufactured by it. Accordingly, clause 3(viy of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued
in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or
other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities,
except for slight delays in case of GST and Provident Fund. According to the information and
explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues were in arrears
as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the informaticn and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory
dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of Nature of Amount Amount Period to Forum where
the the dues (Rs. in paid under | which the dispute is
statute lakhs) protest amount pending
(Rs. in relates
lakhs)
|
Customs Advance 1,917.92 43.24 | FY 2006 to | The
Act, 1962 licenses FY 2009 CommissionerApp
! eals, New Delhi
Central Excise 58.91 1473 | FY 2013-14 | The Central
Excise Act, I Excise and
1944 Service Tax
Appellate
Tribunal,
Maharashtra
income Income Tax 43.51 - | FY 2008-09 | Income Tax
Tax  Act, Department
1961
Income Income Tax 1,734.97 420.53 | FY 2019-20 | Assessment Unit,
Tax  Act, and FY | Income Tax
1961 2020-21 Department
GST Act, '1 Goods and 247.32 FY 2017-18 | Additional
2017 | Services Commissioner of
| Tax Central Tax, West
Bengal
GST Aucdt, | Goods and 585.95 FY 2017-18 | Assistant
2017 Services | and 2018-19 | Commissioner
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Oriflame India Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

(viif)

(ix) (a)

(b)

©

(d)

(e)

®

(x) (a)

(b)

(i) (a)

(b)

(c)

| §
Name of | Nature of Amount | Amount
the the dues | (Rs.In | pald under
statute lakhs) protest
(Rs. in
lakhs)
Tax '
L i S
GST Act, | Goods and 4,179.48
2017 Services
Tax

Period to
which the
amount
relates

— e — =

- | FY 2018-19

Forum where
dispute i
pending

(DGST) Delhi

Assistant
Commissioner
(AGST) Assam

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company did not have any loans or borrowings from any
lender during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not

applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not

applicable.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures
(as defined under the Act) during the yearended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) is

not applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

Based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not have a vigil
Page 7 of 11
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of Oriflame India Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

(xii)

(xifi)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)
(b)
(©)

(d)

{xvii)
(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

mechanism and is not required to have a vigil mechanism as per the Act or SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and accarding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-|A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-|A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs 1,526.40 lakhs in the current financial year
however, no cash loss was incurred in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up
to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Oriflame India Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx){b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

x

P

Shwelé Kumar

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 509822
Date: 30 September 2024 ICAI UDIN:24509822BKHRGG3613
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Oriflame India Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Oriflame India
Private Limited ("the Company”} as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note”).

Management's and Board of Directors’ bilities for internal Finaﬁ'élal Controls

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control staled in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financlal Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Oriflame India Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

nternal Financial Controls with eferer ca.to Financial Statements

Inherent Limitations o

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the passibility of callusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatemnents
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

ﬁ%’
~ Shweta Kumar

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 509822
Date; 30 September 2024 ICAI UDIN:24509822BKHRGG3613
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Oriflame India Private Limited
CIN :- U74893DL1994PTC061083

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH, 2024
{All amounts in Rupees l.akhs, except as otherwise stated)

Particulars

| EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders' funds
(a) Shate capital
{(b) Reserves and surplus

{2) Non-current liabilities
(a} Long term provisions

{3) Current liabilities
(a) Trade payables
(i) -total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and srall
enterprises
(i) -total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enlerprises and small enterprises
(b) Other current liabililies
(c) Shori-term provisions

Total Equity and Liabilities

Il ASSETS
{1) Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipmenl and Intangible assels
(i} Property, plant and equipment
(i) Intangible assets
(i) Capital wotk-in-progiess

(b) Deferred tax assels (net)

(¢) Long term loans and advances

(d) Other non-current assets

(2) Current asscts
(a) Inventories
(b) Trade receivables
(c) Cash and bank balances
(d} Short term loans and advances
(e} Other current 2ssels

Total Assets
Summary of significant accounting policies

Note As at As at
No 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
3 7,989 82 7,989 62
4 35 90 2,323 42
B,025.52 10,313.04
5 918 61 1,060 51
918.61 1,060.51

[
57 30 4524
13,618 74 11,387 37
7 1,568,35 1,598.87
8 798.96 646.55
16,043.35 13,678.03
24,987.48 25,051.58
9(a) 1,267.88 4,681 01
9(b) 19.36
9(c) . 144.00
10 2.265 95 1,837.,39
1 1,410 32 1,255 17
12 731.83 786.32
8,675.78 8,723.25
13 6,458 39 10,552.00
14 1,665,690 2,178.59
15 5,634,94 1,666.46
16 2,342.16 1,873.09
17 210.52 58,19
16,311.70 16,328,33
24,987.48 25,051.58

2

The accompanying notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
ForBSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAIl Firm Regn.No.101248W/W-100022

Aa Kumar

Partner
Membership No 509822

Place : Gurugram
Date : 30/09/2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Oriflasne India Private Limited

- -
- P-<

ubramanian 8
Wholetime Directar
DIN: 03208240

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30/09/2024

<
N
Jigyasa Gulati

Company Secretary
Membership No. A33052
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Oriflame India Private Limited
CIN :- U74899DL1994PTC061083

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024
{All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
No 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Income:
Revenue from operations 18 43,515 08 50,804 10
Other Income 19 16316 394 83
Total Income 43,678.24 51,198.93
Expenses;
Cost of materials consumed 20 7,997 65 887767
Purchases of Stock-in-trade 21 5,540,20 9.374 34
Changes in inventcries of finished goods, work in progress 22 368220 (1,150 19)
and slock-in-lrade
Employee benefits expense 23 5,141.62 5,679 66
Finance cosls 24 127 349
Deprecialion and amortization expense 25 706 25 763 81
Other expenses 26 2332795 28,538 77
Total Expenses 46,397.14 51,487.55
Profit/{Loss) before tax (2,718.90) (2B8.62)
Tax expense
Current tax - 104 60
Current tax for earlier years . (1.40)
Deferred tax 10 (431.38) (116.73)
Profit/{Loss) after tax for the year (2,287.52) {275.09)
Earnings per equity share: in Rs.
Basic (par value of Rs.10 per share (31 March 2023- Rs.10 31 (2.86) (0.34)
per share)]
Diluted [par value of Rs. 10 per share (31 March 2023- Rs 10 (2 86) (0.34)
per share)]
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
ForBSR & Co.LLP For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Qriflame India Private Limited
ICA!l Firm Regn.No.101248WAN-100022

e
hwela Kumar Edyta Bogumila Kurek e Subramanian S
Pariner Managing Director” p . \wnd f r _ Wholetime Director

Membership No. 509822 DIN: 1[1555 , -\ DIN: 03208240

) Place: New Delhi

Place : Gurugram
/ Date: 30/09/2024

Date : 30/09/2024

Jigyasa Gulati
Company Secretary
Membership No. A33052
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Oriflame India Private Limited
CIN :- U748990L1954PTCDG1_083_

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024
{All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Particulars

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit/{Loss) before tax
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation
Gain on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment {net)
Provision for gratuity
Bad debt written off
Security deposits written off
Inventory written off
Interest due on MSME
Interest income
Provision for obsolete/ stow moving inventory
Nel loss on foreign exchange transaclions
Provision for litigations
Liabilities no longer required written back
Lease equalisation reserve
Total A
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES
Adjustments for :
(Decrease)/Increase in other liabilities and provisions
Decrease in loans and advances and olher assets
{Increase)/Decrease in trade receivable
(Increase)/Decrease in inventaries
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (including capital advances,
capital creditors and Capital Work in Progress)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest received
Increase/(Decrease) in fixed depasits (net)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year

3| Page

For the year ended
31 March, 2024

[2,718.90)

706.25
(28.81)
621.83
2.81
91.02
1.27
{9.84)
486.25
(80.91)
(33.60)
32.22
1,778.49
{940.41)

2,215.70
(426.20)

(4.73)
3,516.34
4,360.70
(132.00)
4,228.70

{138.84)

35,24
8.24
(1.00)
(96.36)

4,132.34
1,502.60
5,634.94

For the year ended
31 March, 2023

{288.62}

763.81
(12.45)
2,50
13.219
12.67
95.98
3.49
(19.78)
767.92
(219.75)
100.00
{129.80)
18.36
1,396.16
1,407.54

1,831.44
751.15)
(190.32)

{1.763.92)

233.59

233.59
{(462.98)

22.58
18.74
(0.60)
(422.26)

{188.67)
1,691.27
1,502.60




Oriflame Indla Private Limited
CIN :- U74899DL1994PTC061083

CASH FLOW SIATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ‘N MARCH, 20-24

{All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Particulars

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year
- Cash in hand
- Balance with online payment gateway
- In current accounts
- In EEFC Accounts
- in deposits with original maturity of 3 months
Total

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023

. 2,16

402,23 347.29

1,482.,86 1,062.04

349.85 91.11

3,400.00 -

5,634.94 1,502,60

Note: The Cash Flow has been prepared in accordance with the indirect Method as set out in the Accounting Standard (AS) - 3
on 'CashFlow Statement, Cash Flow Statements as notified under Seclion 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read with the

relevant rules thersunder,

As per our report of even date attached
ForBSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Regn.No.101248W/W-100022

22
5 wéia Kumar

Partnher
Membership No, 509822

Place : Gurugram
Date : 30/09/2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
7 ) Oriflame India Private Limited

/ndia ;@/

Edyta Bogumila an;a}f?/- % _% Subramanian S
Managing [)‘:refc‘:tb! . Whaoletime Director

\ e
DIN: wsati "] DIN: 03208240
G0
N

Jigynsg Gulati
Company Secretary
Membership No, A33052

g,

pfr—

i
795 Place: New Delhi
Date: 30/09/2024

_/
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Oriflame India Private Limited
CIN - U74899D1 1994PTCNR10R3

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

1

iy

v)

Vi)

Background

Oriflame  India Private Limiled (The Company) is engaged n lhe busiress of wadng  manulacluting and s beauly and weliness
producls, The Campany was incoiporaled in 1994 under \he ersiwhile Companies Act, 19466 as a pdvale limiled company having its
regislered office in New Deaihi. The Company is a subsidiary of Oiiflame Invesimenls Limided Mauritus and Orlame Pariners Limited ,
Jarsey, is Ihe ullimate holding company.

Summary of Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation of (inancial statements

The fnancial sialements of the Company are prepzred on a going con<ern basis under Ifie hislofical cesl convention on the accrual basis
of accounling. in accordance wilth the Generally Accepled Accounling  Principles in Indiz (‘GAAPY) and comply with (he Accounling
Standasds  speciied  under  Section 133 of Ihe Companies Acl, 2013 [fAct), sead wilh Rule 3 ol the Companies (Accounling
Standards)Rulas, 2021 and olher relevant provisions of the Acl. The financial stalements are presenled i Indian rupees. rounded off to

lakhs The actounting policies adopted in the preparation of linancial stalements are consistenl wilh thase of previous year

Use of going cancern assumplion

Management makes an assessment of an enlily’s abilily (v conlinue 3s a going concern while pieparing these financial slatemenis .
financial slalemenls are prepared on a going concem basis unless managemenl cither intends I liquidale the enlily or lo cease
operalions or has no realislic alternalive bul lo do so. When management is aware, in making ils assessmenl, of malenal uncerainlies
relaled lu events o cendiions (hal may casl significanl doub! upon lhe enlily’s abilily lo conlinue ss a3 going concern, lhose uncenaintics
are disclosed. The maragement is confident thal the Company will mee! ils obiigalions as lhey fall due, al leasl for a period of 12 monlhs
aller Ihe balance sheel date and accordingly, these financial stalements have been prepared on a going concem basis.

Use of estimates

The preparalion of financial slaiements in conformily wilh Generally Accepled Acceunling Principles (GAAP) requires (he managemenl o
make judgmerks, estimales and assumplions lhal aftect lhe application of acceounting pclicies and reported amounls of assels, liabililes
and disclosute of contingent liabiliies at the dale of he financial stalements and the income and expenses for lhe year. Aclual resufis

could however, differ from these eslimales. Any revision to accounting estimales are recognised prospeclively in the periods, in which

aclual results malerialise.

Current/Non-Current classification

All assets and lisbilities are classified inlo cument and non-currenl as per ithe Campany's nommal operating cycle and olher crileda set out
in the Schedule |l to Ihe Acl.

Assels

An assel is classified as cuirent when il salisfies any of the following crlena:

2. it is expected ta be realised in, or is inlended for sale or consumplion in, the company’s narmal operaling cycle;

b ii is held primarily for the purpase of being traded;

¢ ilis expecled lo be realised wilhin 12 montns afler the reporting dale; or

d. it is cash or cash equivalenl unless il is restricled from being exchanged or used fo setlle 3 liability for at least 12 monihs afler (he

reporling date.

Curreni assels include \he curent portion of non-current financial assets. All other assels are classified as non-current.

L iabilities

Aliability is classified as current when il salisfies any of the following crileria

a. it is expecled 1o be setiled in the company's normal operating cycle ;

b, il is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

c. itis due lo be seltled within 12 months alter the reporting dale; or

d. lhe company does nol have an unconditional right lo defer selllemenl of lhe liability for al teasl 12 moniths alter ihe reporting dale

Currenl liabilities include the current portion of non-cutren! financial liabilities All olher liabililies are classified as non-current.

Opcraling cycle

Operaling cycle is lhe lime bLelween the acquisilion of assets lfor pracessing and lheir realisation in cash or cash equivalenis. Based on lhe

nalure of activilies of the Company, lhe Company has delermined ils cperaling cycle as twelve monlhs for lhe purpose of classificalion of
ils assets and liabiliies as curent and nen-current.

Revenue Recognilion

Reverue is recognised to the extent il is probable lhal the ecanomic benefils will fiow to the Company and |he revenue can be reliably

measured. The following specific recognilion crilenon musl atso be rmet beflore revenue is recognized:

Sale ol goods

Revenue from lhe sale of goods is recognised at the lime ol dispaich /deliveryfhandover of goods (o cuslomers which coincides with
transfer of tisks and rewards. Revenues are slaled rel of returns, laxes on sale, and disccunls

Revenuc (rom sales of services

Revenue from sales of services is recognized when Lhe services are rendered |6 cuslomers,

Interest on fixed deposits

Interest income is recagnized on a lime proparticnale basis laking inlo account the amounl oulstanding and applicable rate of inlerest

Export incentives

The Company makes esport sales under Duty Drawback Scheme under the Export linport Policy of Governmenl of india. The Company
recognises income in respecl of enlittemenl under Duly Drowback Scheme al lhe lime ol recegnition of expor: sales

Praperty, Planl and Equipment and Intangible assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are carded al cosl of acquisdion or construction less  accumulaled  deprecialion  and  accumuiated
impairmenl loss, it any. The cost of an item of property, planl and cguipment comprises ils purchase pice, including impon dulies and
alher non-tefundable laxes or levies and any dircclly alliibulabie cost of bringing he assel la ils warking condilion for ils intended use: Any
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Oriflame India Private Limited
CIN :- U74899DL1934PTC061083

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

vii)

viKi)

ix)

{x}

{xi)

liade discounts @ rebates are dadbeted in armving ol e puithigse prics

Subsequent expenditures relaled 1o an item of Properly, Plant and Equipment are added 1o ils book value only il il increases the [ulure
benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed slandard oi perforriance

A Property. Ptart and Equipment is eliminated fram he financial siatemenis on disposal or when no further economic benefit is expacled
from ils use and disposal.

Gains or ipsses arsing lrom retirement o disposal of Propedy, Plant and Equipment which are camied &l cusl are recegnised n lhe
Stalemenl ol Profit and | oss

Intangible assets

inlangible assels that are acquired by lhe Company are measurad inilially al cosl. Afer initial recognition, an inlangible assel is camied at
ils cost less accumulaled amodisaton and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Subsequenl expenditure is capitalisec only when it
increases lhe lulure economic benefits fiom the specific assel lo which il reiales Losses aiising (rom reliremenl and gains or lesses
ansing from disposal of an inlangible assel are measured as the dilference belveen the nel dispasal proceeds and (e carmying amounl of
lhe assel and are recognised in the Stalement of Profit and Loss

Depreciaticn and amortization

Property. Plant and Equipment

Depreciation on propady, piant and equipmenl is provided on pro rata basis o the period of use on the slraight line melhad ie. from lhe
date on whict: lhe assel is ready for use, aver ils eslimaled uselul lives as determined by the managermenl.

Calegory of assets [Estimated Useful Life (in years)}

Buildings [30}

Tools and Moulds # (3]

Plant and machinery # |3 lo 15]

Ofiice equipment # [5)

Compulers # [3]

Fuinilure and fixtures #:|5}

Vehicles # [5)

# For o above class of assels, based on iilernal assessment and independent lechnical evalualion cared ocul by external expart.  The
useful lives are reviewed by Ihe managament al cach financial year-end and revised, il appropfiale. In case of a revisicr, lhe upamoitised
depreciable amount is charged over the revised remairung usetul hfe.

The cost of leasehold improvements is being amortised over lhe period of lease o five years, whichever is shorter.

Assels cosling upto Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase

Intangible Assets

Amoilizalion (o Intangible assets is provided on pre-igla basis from the dale Ihe assels are ready for inlended use over its estimated
useful life. Amorlization an sale/ratirement of Inlangible assets is provided for up o Ihe date of relirement of Intangible assets.

Category of assets [Eslimated Useful Life {in years)]

Soflware licenses [4 to §]

Impairment

The carying values ol propeity. plant and equipmenl and intangible assels are reviewed at each reporting dale to determine i lhere is
ndicalion cof sny impairment. I any indicalion exisls. the asset's recoverable amount is eslimaled. For assels Ihat are aol yel available for
use, \ne recovershie amount is eslimaled al each reporling date. An impairment loss is recognised whenever lhe camying amount of an
assel or lhe Company's cash genersling unit exceeds its recoverable amount and is recognised in {he Stalement of Profil and Loss. An
jmpairment loss is reversed if thele has been a change in the eslimzles used lo delermine Ihe recoverable amouni. An impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent thal lhe assel's casying amount does nol exceed (he carrying amount \hal would have been determined nel of
depreciation or amortisalion, i no impairmenl lass hac been recognised.

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions in foreign cumency are recarded at lhe exchange rate prevailing al the dale of the ftransaclicr. Exchange diflerences arising
on foreign currency lransaclions sailled during the year are recognised in Ihe Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary assels and liavilities denominaled in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date, are translaled al year end rales. The
resullanl exchange diHferences are recognised Siateanenl ol Profil and Loss. Non-monslary assets and liabilities are recerded a1 \he
rales prevailing on the dale of lhe transaclion.

Invenlories

Invenlories are valued al lower of cosl and ne! realizable value. The cosl comprises purchase price of invenloties plus the cosl of bringing
the inveniories ta their present localion and condition, The basis of delermination cosl for various categories of inventory is as follows:

Raw materials:

Raw malerials are valued at lower of cos! and net realisable value. The cosl of raw materal is defermined cn firstin first oul (FIFO) basis.

Wark in progress:

Work in progress 1s valued al lower of ccst and net realisable value, The cosl incudes raw malerial vaiue determined on FIFO basis and
produclion overheads apportianed on lhe basss of slage of camplelion

Finished goods:

Manufaclured  fimished goods: Manufaclured finished goods are valued al [(he lower of cost and nel realisablie vale. The cost of
manufaciured finished goods includes raw material value determined on FIFQ basis and praduclion overheads,

Stock-in -trade:

Traded fimshed gocds: Traded finished goods are valued al the lower of cosl and nel reslisable value The cosl of Iraded finished gocds is
deterrmined on FIF O basis

Employee benefits

Shon-term employee benefits:
All employee benefits payable wholly wilhin twelve monihs al rendering service are classified as shori-lerm employee benefils. Benefils
sich as salaries, allowances. shorl-lern compensaled absences and ihe expecled cosl of other benelils is recognised in Ihe perod in
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Oriflame India Private Limited
CIN :- U74899DL1994PTC061083

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

(xil)

(xiii)

{xiv}

(xv)

(xvi)

whiddi e eipluyee endedy e elaled seivice,

Defined coniribution plan;

Provideol fund

The Company's provideni fund scheme is a defined coninbution plan. A defined conlibtion plan is a post-gmployment benelil plan ungei
which an enlily pays fixed conldibultions and will have no aobligation to pay lurther amounls  Obligalions for  conlributions to  deflined
conlribution plars are paid lo the Regionzl Frovidenl Fund Cormimissioner and are recogn:sed as an employce benefit expense in \he
Siatement of Proit and Loss when hey are due.

Superannualion fund

Retiremen!  benelits in We ferm of Superannualion Fund (funded lhrough LiC) are funded defined contribubons schemes and lhe
conlribulions are charged 1o the Stalemenl of Profit and Loss (or the year when the conlributions 1o the respeclive funds are due, There
are no olhe: abligalions ather than |he conlribulion payable,

Defined benelit plan:

Gratuily is a defined benelit plan. The adminisiration of the graluity scheme has been entrusted to Ihe LIC. Contdbulions are made by lhe
Company lo the LIC based on acluariai valuation of obligation as al 31 Maich every year conducled by the LIC. Such conlribwiions paid
during lthe year have been charged to lhe Statemenl of Profil and Loss on accruel basis The Company also carries oul an  acluaral
valualion conducted by an independenl actuary as al 31 March every year for company as a whole Any incremental value of obligalion, as
compared wilh he obligation delermined by the LIZ is charged Lo Ihe Slatement of Profil and Loss

The presenl vaslue of oblioalions under such defined benefil plan is determined based on actuarial valuatien carried out by on independeni
acluary Using ihe Projecled Unil Credit Method, which recognises each peiiod of sarvice as giving rise to addilional uril of employee
benelil entillement and measure each unil separately to build up the finat abligation.

Other fong term benelits

Cosl of long term beaefit by way ol accumulaling compensaled absences arising during the lenure of lhe service is calculaled taking into
accounl lhe pallern of availment of leave. In respecl of gncaskment of leave, lhe delined benefil is calculated iaking inlo accounl all lypes
ol decremenls and qualilying salary projecled up lo the assumed date of encashment, The presenl value of obligalions under such long
lerm benefit plan is delermined based on acluarial valualicn camied oul by an independent acluary using lhe Pojecled Unit Credit Melhod
as at year end.

Trealment of actuanal gains and losses

Acluarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in thc Stalement of Frofil and Loss Gains or lesses on ke curt@ilmen! or
selllement ot any defined benefit plan are recognised when ibe curtailmeni or selllement pccurs.

Operating leases (as a lessec)

Lease arrangemenls where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset subslantially vesl with the lessor, are recognized ss
operaling leases, Lrase renlals unider operaling leases are recognized in the Slatement of Profit and Lass on a straighl line basis

Taxatian

Incoma-tax expense comprises current lax (i.e. amount of lax for lhe year determined in accordance wilth prevailing income-lax laws) and
deferred lax charge or credit (reflecling the lox effects of timing dillerences between atcounling income and laxable incotne jor the year).
I'he delerred \ax charge or credit and the comespending deferred lax liabililes and/ or assels are recoghiscd using lhe lax rales thal have
been cnacled ar substaniively enacled by lhe Balance Sheel dale. Doferred lax assets are recognised only o the exlenl there is
reasonable cerlainly lhal the assels can be realised in fulure; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciaton or caried Ionvard loss
under laxalion laws deferred lax assels are reccgnised only il Ihere is virtua! cerainty of realisalion of such assets. Delerred lax assels
are reviewed as al each Bsalance Sheel dale and writen down or written-up io reflecl Ihe amount lhal is reasonably / wrually cenain (3s
\ke case may be) lo be realised.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions:

The Company creales a provision when there is present obligalion as a resuit of a pasl event lhal probably reguires an oulfiow of
resources and a reliable estimale can be made of the amount of lhe obligalion, Provisions are recognized al the besl eslimale of the
expenditure required to set!le the obligalion al the Ralance Sheel dale, The pravisions are measured on an undiscounled basis

Contingent Liabilities:

A disclosure {or a conlingent liabilily is made when there is a passible obligalion or a present obligaiion Ihat may, but peabably will notl
require an oulflow of resources, cf a present obligalion whose amount cannot be eslimated refiably. When lhere is a possible obligalion or
a presen| obligation in respect of which the likelihood of culflow of resources is remale, no provision or disciosure is made

Provisions are reviewed al each Balance Sheel date and adjusted to reflect the cuirenl best eslimate. If it is no Jonger probable thal an
outflow of resources would be required to sellie the obligalion, the provision is reversed,

Coniingent Assels:

Contingent assels are nol recognized in the financial slalements. However, conlingen! asset are assessed conlinuzlly and i il is virtually
certain that an inflow of economic benefils will arise, Ilne assel and relaled income are recegnized in lhe period in which the change
aceurs.

Cash and cash equivalents

Foi Cash Flow Statemenl, cash and cash equivalenls comprise cash on hand, balance with bank, and deposils wilh bank wilh maturity
period of (hree manths or less [rom lhe date of investment,

Eamings per share

Basic earnings pzr share are calculated by dividing the nel profil ot loss for the year allribulable e equily shareholders by he weighted
average number of equily shares outstanding during the year, For the purpose of calculating diluled eamings per share, the net profil or
less lor lhe year allributable lo equity shareholders and lhe weighted average number of shares oulslanding during \he year are adjusied
Tor the effects of all dilulive potenlial equity shares,
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Oriflame India Private Limited
CIN :- U74899DI 1994PTCNR1083 o

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023

3, SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised
85,000,000 (31 March 2023-85,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each. 8,500.00 8,500.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up
79 896 216 (31 March 2023-79,896.216) Equily Shaces of Rs.10 each (fully paid 7 989 62 7.589.62
up}.
Total 7,989.62 7,989.62

3(a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the year end

As at 31 March, 2024 | As at 31 March, 2023
Particulars | i 1
1 No Of Shares Amount ] No Of Shares . Amount
At the beginning and at the end of the year l 79,896,218_ 7,9&9,62' 79,896,215! 7,989.62

3 (b) Rights, preferences and restriclions attached to equily shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in
the Company's residual assets, The equity shares are enlitled (o receive dividend as declared from lime lo time . Tha voting rights
of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company.
Voling righls cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any cali or olher sums presently payable have not been paid.
Failure o pay any amount called up on shares may lead lo forfeiture of he shares On winding up of lhe Company, the holders of
equity shares will be entitled lo receive the residual assets of lhe Company, remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts

in propertion to the number of equity shares held.

3(c}) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Ccmpany and shares held by the holding/ ultimate
holding company andfor their subsidiaries as at 31 March 2024 and as at 31 March 2023 are set out below:

As at 31 March, 2024 [ As at 31 March, 2023

Particulars No Of Shares | % Of Holding | No Of Shares % Of Holding
Equil;{ shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up held by

Oriflame Investments Limited, Mauritius (holding 79,896,215 99 99 79,896,215 99 99
company) __ R R [ A
Oriflame Cosmetics Global 5.A, Luxembourg 1 } 0.01 1 0.01
{fellow subsidiary) | | I __|
Total 79:896‘216| 100,00 79,896,216 100.00

3(d) No class of shajes have been issued as bonus shares or shares issued for consideration other lhan cash during the period of
five years immedialely precading ihe reporing date.

3(e) No class of shares have been bought back by the Company during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting
date.

3(f) There were no secwities convertible into equity/preference shares issued/outslanding as at 31 March, 2024 and 31 March
2023,

3{g) There were no calls unpaid (in aggregate value) as al 31 March, 2024 and 31 March 2023,
3(h) There were no forfeited shares as al 31 March, 2024 and 31 March 2023.
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Oriflame India Private Limited
CIN - U7489SDL1894PTC 061083

NQTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024
{All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

3(i) No shares are 1eserved for issue under oplions or conhiacts/commitments for the sale ol shares/disinvestment,

3(j) Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

| Sr | Promoters Name
| No !

— 1 =
1 Ciiflame Investments

| Linited. Mauritius

| S.A.L Luxembaurg

Sr Promaters Name

No
1 Oriflame investments
| Limited, Mauritius
2 Oriflame Cosmetics Global
S.A., Luxembourg
Total
Particulars

4. RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss

At the beginning of the year
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year
At the end of the year

5. LONG TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for gratuily (Refer note 5 B)

2 | Oriflame Cosmelics Global

_lIotal -

As at 31 March 2024

Number of‘ % of total shares|
Shares
79,896,215 99 ©g% |
| 001%
79,896,216 1uo.oo%i

As on 31st March 2023

As at 31 March, 2023

% of change.-'

: during the |

Number of, 4, of total sham-:s1 ng
Shares year |
79.856 215i S5 BV 0.00%
1 ‘ G.01% 0 00%
79,896,216 | 100.00% 0.00%

As on 31st March 2022

% of change |

Provision for compensated absences (Refer note § C)

Total Provision for Employee Benefits

Other long term provisions
Lease equalisation reserve

Total Other Provisions

Total

Disclosures pursuant to AS-15{revised in 2005}, "Employee Benefits™:

5A) Defined contribution plans

- Contribution to Provident Fund

- Contribulion to Employees State Insurance Fund

Total
5B) Defined benefit plans

9 | Page

31 March, 2024

) during the |

Number of| % of total shares Number of| % of total shares J i
Shares| Shares I yea i
79,896,215 99.99% 79,896,215 99.99% 0.00%
1 0. 01% 1 0.01% 0.00%

79,896, 216 100.00% 79,896,216 | 100.00% u.on%J

As at As at

31 March, 2023

2,323.42 2,598,51
(2,287.52) (275.09)
35.30 2,323.42
274.22 256.57
394.54 441,69
668.76 698.26
249.85 362.25
249,85 362.25
918.61 1,060.51
260.74 255 45
7.97 9.14
268.71 264.59




Oriflame India Private Limited
CIN :- U74893DL1994PTC061083

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

(AN amounts i

v Rupees Lakhs, except as vtherwise stated)

Gratuity Plan

The Company operales a graluily plan wherein eligile employees are enlitled to the benefil equivalent 10 15 days last drawn
monthly basic salary lor each completed vear of service. Graluily is payable o all eligible employees of lhe Company on refirement
or separation or death or permanent disablement in lerns of lhe provisions of the Paymenl of Gratuily Acl.

! Sr.No Particulars et (EEnged) |
Z_ . . - - As at 31 March, 2024-_ As at :I1_Mar_t‘:h. 1023_
(a) Principal Actuarial assumptions:
; 1 Mortality lable 1 IALM (2006-08) l JALM (2006-08) ‘
,_ 2 Discount rate (per annum)* 7.00% .' 7.20%
: o 3 Expected rate ;)f return on plan assets (pianngm) i - __ N wl 7,00"_/a
'I 4 ISala:ie_s growth rate (per annum) - 8.00% ) B.00% .
_.js . _Re_liremEnt Egg_(years) - - ] GOErs ! ___ B 60 Ye_:ars |
i 6 Withdrawal rate = __ 0 0
[ __.:Up l-o 30 ye;rs: - 1 15.00% | 15.00% i
| 'I-_31-_44_years: o S ___ 10.00% | 10.00%
;__ _ —-e;bo_ve.44 years: | 5.00% | 5.00%
(b) Change in Pre_sgll Value of Defined Benefit Obliga!ions:_ B _
1 Present value of obligation as al the beginning of the year 992.85_ N - 1,_0&
[ 2 Interest cost - - 67.29 65,95 I
| 3_ i Current Service cos! o - - 98 55| 109.66
' 4 Pai§ervice Ct;:sl - . { N -
. 5 Benefits paid - (115.45)1 (131.00)
e 6 A_ctugria;lGain_(in_cludes Plan Amendment Cost/(Credit)) N - (67.42) | (7:&-
7 ‘Present val-u.e o_f abligat'ion as at the end of year 974,83 992.85
. (c) Chal_\ge inar Value of Plan Assets: - ]
1 Fair value of pl_an assets as al beginning of lh_e period Sl 5 736.28 772.04
_2 - Expecle_dremn_plan assels 48,45.II ------ 52.85
__ 3 - _Co_nlrib_uliuns by the company N 2829 I o _TBS
4 |Benefits paid—_ - - - - _(176;5)'. o (131.00;-
- 1) i Acluanal Gain l_(Lo-ss) - : 4.0I2 . - (2.50)
__6_ B _F_alva:lue of plan assets as at the end of year I 700.59 - - 7_36.2;_
{d) Amouﬁt Recognised in the Balance Sheet: o =
_ 1_ l;resent val;Je of dt;iga|ior1s at end of year ] - 974 83 I 992.85
2 Less: Fair value of plan assets as at the end of lhe year o T — 700,61 : ?_38,28
B 3 i .Net liability re@nizeﬂaalance Sheel h (274.23)] (256._51
4 Amount-classlﬁed as : non-current provisions . (2;4.-23) ] (;56.57)
{e) Expenses recognize_d in profit and loss account: - o R B
| 1 Current service__co_st_ - _9;1 55‘ o _109.66.
B 2— F;st Service Cost - _ - - _- ]
E 3 Interest cost o B R 67‘29_.“_ _— o 65.95
4 Expected relurn on plan assels - (45.;5) (52.85)
5 _Net actuarial gain recogni;ed ir:the period — N (71.44) (70.51)
6 Expense recognized in t_h:statement of profit and losses 45.95 52.24
[note 23) | - B
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Oriflame India Private Limited
CIN :- U74899DL1994PTC061083

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024
(AH amounts in Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated) - o

' fhe discount rate is based upon the prevailing market yield of governmenl bonds as at the Balance Sheel dale for the
eslimmeted teim of the obligelion and the estimoles of foture aalary inceennena connidered  taking  inte acgounl the  inflatian,

seniority, promolion and other relevant factors.

The Company makes annual conlribution o Life Insurance Corporation (LIC) wrt its plan assets, composition cf plan asseis ate

scheme of insurance-conventional products

(f) Experience of acturial gain/(loss) for projected benefit obligation and plan asset

Particulars 3t March 2024 31 March 2023 31 Masch 2022| 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Preseni value of (974.83) (892.85) {1.021.26) {975.54) {994.41)
obligalion as lhe cnd of

thes yeay ————— =

Fair value of plan assals 700.61 736.28 772.04 716.585 728.33
as at (he end of the year B I B L ____ i N -
Net Jiabililies (274.22) (256 57) (249 22) (258 99) (256.08)
Experience adjustment 81.32 48.67 26 14 24.18 5.41
on plan lisbilities

(loss)/gain L — - |- — - i | — .
Experience adjusiment 4.02 (2.50) (3.38) (1012) (8.87)
on pian assels (lossligain | | v e —— .
Actunial {loss)/gain an (13.91) 23.34 25.75 (8.29) (58.54)
change in assumpion | N . =

§C: Other long term benefit (Compensated absences)

The Company operates compensated absences plan, where in every employee is entitled lo the benelit equivalent to 3¢ days
leave salary for every completed year of service subject to maximum of 90 days accumulalion of leaves. The salary for caiculation
of eared leave is last drawn basic salary. The same is payable during the service, early retirement, withdrawal of scheme,
resignation by employee and upon death of employee.

An acluarial valuation of compensated abserces has been carried out by an independent actuary on the basis of the following

assumptions:

e - S B — I

| Assumptions i. As at 31 March, [ As at 31 March,

. | 2024 [ 2023

Drsr:u-._lnr rat_e_ - . _ - ) r 7‘0_0"/_;, _p.;, B | 7.2%.-3_.

!\v—.?ll;ienl rate ) ) - _ ; 1_5_0%_p.a. 1 ) 150%, p.a

[Saiary escala_lio_n rate - = R . | 8.00% p.a. = B,('Z\D% p.a__:

Compensated absences

{ Particulars — As at 31 March, As ;t 31 March, l

2024 2023

Presermlalue of C_cmper;sated ags;nceé al_ltl_e_yea; e;1d . - 440._1:; _ ___- 493,31
S - 1 440.13 B 493.;.
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Oriflame India Private Limited
CIN :- U74899DL1994PTC061083

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise slated)

Particulars As at
31 March, 2024

6. TRADE PAYABLES

6(a) -10TALL OUTSTANDING DUES OF MICRO ENTERPRISES AND SMALL
ENTERPRISES

As at
31 March, 2023

Refer nole 6.1 57.30 45.24
6(b) -TOTAL OUTSTANDING DUES OF CREDITORS OTHER THAN MICRO
ENTERPRISES AND SMALL ENTERPRISES
Refer note 6 2 13,618 74 11,387.37
Total 13,676.04 11,432,561

6.1 Disclosure in relation lo dues of Micro and Small enterprises 'Suppliers' as defined in the Micro, Smail and Medium Enlerprises

Development Act. 20086.

. . o = i — — e - = o
Particulars I As at 31 March 2024,  As at 31 March, 2023
(i)The principal amount and lhe interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any
_supplier as al the end of the accounhng year,

1
a)Principal amount due to micro and sma.l emerpnses at the year end 57.30 45.24|
b)interesl due on above 0.01 NIL
(iNThe amount of inlerest paid by the buyer under MSMED act 2006 along NiL NIL
with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day during which accounling year: - 1 o - - -

i) The amount of interest due and payable for lhe pericd (where the pnncnpal 1.26 3.49
has been paid but interest under he MSMED Act. 2006 not paid) I .
iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid st the end of 103,86 102.59

| accounting vear: and ) R
v) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding 103.86 102.59
year, unlilt such dale when the interesl dues as above are actually paid to the
small enterprise, {or the purpose uof disallowance as a deduclible expenditure
under seclion 23 of MSMED Act 2006. . R - o R
6,2 Includes payable to related party (refer note 36¢})

6.3 Trade Payables ageing schedule
Pamculars Unbilled Not Due Oulstandlng As At 3151 March 2024 (CY) for follownng penods from due l

: —_— date of payment. — !
| Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total]
{ . year years

l(i) MSME

! As al 31 March 2024 ] 42.57 12.24 2,49 57.30

| Rsal3TMarch202a| . [ . T I B | 4524

| (u) Olhers

As al 31 March 2024 ] 3,362 71 | 31107.85' 5,731.97 1 514 83 138 - [ 13.618.74
Asaldl Mach2023 | 202140  2.18213] 5.596.12| 581 3.41| Th22) nazide
{iii) Dispuled dues — MSME
i As at 31 March 2024 | = . i
As al 31 March 2023 | (i o = = = o

/?( (JC‘\ ’\ 12 | Page
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Oriflame India Private Limited

CIN :- U74899DL1994PTC061083

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024
{All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, except as olherwise stated)

Outstanding As At 31st March 2024 (CY) for following periods from due

Particulars | Unbiiled Not Due
i | | i : date of pnyma::ﬂ : - |
' | Less than 1| 1-2 years 2-3years|  More than 3| Total|
l year years I
| . | —= N J i — |- i
| Asai31 March 2024 | . ‘l - | - | . | :
AsatdiMarch2023]  24022| - | . | R R wl aeset)
! Total ' I
As ai 3| March 2024 i 3.3_62.71 ‘ i .3,050.-1_21 5.744.2? 1,617.32 1 Z}&i. i EH
| asatatmachz0z3| 22162 218210 694336 15.51] 341 2661 11 432.61
Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
7. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advance from cuslomers 706.87 928.73
Employee benefit payable 174.88 206.06
Stalutory dues payable 581.24 359.99
Interest due to MSME 103.86 102,59
Eamest money deposits from vendors 1.50 1.0
Total 1,568.35 1,598.87
8. SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS
Pravision for employee benefits:
Provision for compensated absences (Refer note 5C) 45.60 51.62
Others
Provision for customs duly- advance licenses (Refer note 34) 354,12 340.28
Provision for other litligations 100.00 100.00
Stamp Duty ( Refer note 34) 98.41 98.41
Lease equalisation reserve 200.83 56.24
Total 798.96 646.55

13 | Page



abed | y|

“1eaf sy} Bunnp pesiendea sem seak snemaid u) Bupeadde ssasBosd vl wom jeyded ‘g

‘Auedwon

ay] j0 dwey ay; v play ale (99553| 3Y) jO INOAR) U] PIiNIaxa sle s)uawealbe asea| ayy pue 3assa) ay) S1 Auedwo) sY) a1eym saizadard uey) Jay)o) saiHadoud s|gerow) ay) (|E Jo SPIaP 2 3YL T

"1eak ay) Sunng s)asse aqiBueyu 10 Juswdinb3 pue juelq *Ausdold s jo Aue panjeass jou sey Auedwoy By °|

80°297'p 76'C60°8 |parzez _ 52'902 _ [14:14:¥3 _em.zn.mp |90'88t B}'08Z _S.mwv.u— g0
[ - _ . . = _2_.3, . |00'wp) 12104
| _ - aopyy - |06vbt s521B01d Ul HOAA Jended
| 7 _ tsa1Boid u| Yiop [E3dRD ‘28
= o MNMMmI S .nu_ow g6l L1865 |sz195 8z0s S ?5°L19 leat
. |9z 135 |szes 155 {Veeg 9z:9¢ 8205 - |psrats S95U92)| 2IEMIJOS
| ; siassy aig|Buryuy "qs
.2.53. | 99'928'2 1913 88989 periza‘e P5P8L' VL 82°CBY _nrsn« “_2.2_»_: 2oL _
€5 9p s¢ 8¢ DEG 1501 80°FL 86°58 6L°6Y lavis i 7 $BRIYAA
15631 BLBLG Zies £6'96 16°29¢ SE°8E9 £Thy 9°0€ vZs9 13ndwo)d
22ze 05'v2e 52'93 £EPE 9y'92E 2Uiee BS'Zp |- _ ocPLE S3InIx(4 pue sinjuing
Sh'a? s1'z88 D0'6% 9i'sg 66'7b8 09°LE6 65°64 pe's SV'GY6 wawdinb3 3240
29665 | SD'6.6'C nLo 51082 | oo'ssg’e 19°8L5'S 0i'0 €567 L vE'E6E'S wawdinbs pueiueld
88'52 0L Ev9 56°¢% 08201 S2'6L5 86°899 680y ke 48'60¢ siuswanosdw| ploH asest
T90LE s 0LEEL S r E}86 455€0°) EEPVE'T - _mwg 99°9E6'Z séuppng |
86809 €09 A 28 10°519 | . L0519 pug pjoyaaiy
_ | _ juaurdinbg pue yueld ‘Auadoid ‘eg
o 1eak 1eak 1eak
¥Z0Z 'UMEW  yz0z ‘youep | ay) Buunp czoz ‘(udy tz0z 'yostew ays Bupnp ay) Buunp €20z
LC IV sY LE IV SY spesodsig _ teaf ayjioq | LIV Sy LE W SY s[esodsig SuoIppy ‘ludy | 1y sy
MD0TH 13N NOILVYZILYOWY | NOILYID3H43Q d31LYTNINNDJY HMDO079 SSOUD sie|nojped

$20Z ‘HOMVYIN L€ 38 SY¥ S13SSV ITEHIONYLNI ONY LNIWLIND3 ANV LNv1d ‘ALM3dO¥d : 6 3LON

(pajE)s asimiaylo se Jdaoxa ‘syxe saadny ul sjunowe ||y}
$20Z 'HOYVIN 1€ QAN ¥V3A IHL HOd SINIWILVLS TVIONYNIL 40 1¥Vd ONIWYOL SILON

{£80$300L1d¥66171Q668Y.LN -* NI2

Pajlwi] S1eAd BIpU| SWeRQ



UprR'e

00'ppi

0C byl

1007389y
620
S ¥BL

PRiv

£20Z 'YW
LEV SY

¥0078 L3N

efied | G|

~Auedwog

ay) Jo aweu sy) Ul pj3y 3B '{22559| BYJ 4O JNOAR) U] pajnaaxa aje sjualwasibe asea) sy) pue 8assa| ay] | Auedwoy suj assym saadosd uey) Jeulo) ssisadosd djqeAoWLl BY) i@ JO SDIBP Al UL T

1e9A sy} Buunp sjasse a|qiBueju Jo Juswdinb3 pue jueld ‘Auadold s) Jo Aue panfeaas Jou sey Auedwod ayy ‘|

NOILYZILHOWY / NOILVI23¥d3a dILYINANDIV

MO0Td SSOHD

. 1e'5z9'L -E.mmn | 18ceL Wz 89°630'Z4 | apast _um.uuv 0L'LLE'TH (e1al _
- T 00°pp4 ] loowoL . leoL _
o [+ | 007t - aobyL - seaifiold Ul Yiop [eudeD 7
_ £59B0.4 Ul Yo IB3IDBD 06
,t,mmm o - LTy =5 71 ys°LLe I n PS°LLY JeroL |
Ihlr ¢.mm T 0L .‘Nu o _ 8£'048 pSLio pS 2L9 SB5UDY Biemyog _
51955y alg;bueiu) ‘g6 |
_vlr..hlwa.;.. R T BE'LYY'S vLB0LTLL 0p°'99¢ lesatr a9'892' L4 . 1moL 1
80 ve 4974 | ,o.m. 66°S6 15pL |2z522 &V'201 Sa[EYaN
1828y £6°25 $078 | ST [Adrat] £9'8S Ha ] _ 19958 i3ndwoy
LT | FA8 8 lp T898C 0EvIg e _mm ZBE saJn|xi4 pue aunjiuing |
B6 viE 8Z 8% 1504 felagdo] Sb'SHG 05’8 2y €8'656 Wwswadinb3 a0
00 3697 6€'C 80 6LE CEPar'e PB'BEC'S 7'z 8€'L0s lzs9ze's Wawdinb3 pue juelq
SZELs Gl Vit gl 221 2z'ces 168°604 09y |1a' p'ye8 Suawanoigur| ploH asea |
25500 98'L ac'6 L0°5v6 3996 T [ZA:] _ (38 [£-92d-¥4 sBuiping
o E S8'L 8¢ L0'§ES . Lo'SLe pueT ptoyaary
_q. Juawdinby pue jue|g ‘Aadoid "Bg _
- Jeak N | | 1eak
€207 'yasel 3y} Buunp zzoz 1MdvY | ¢zoz 'yosew ay) Buunp ayj Buunp 2202
LE IV SY s|esods|g _ 1eaf ayy 104 L1V sy LE Y sy s|esodsiq suonippy ‘ludy L 1y sy

sieno(ued

€202 'HOMVIN LE 1B SY S13SSY IT8IONVLNI ANY LNIWAIND3 ANV LNV Td 'AL¥ILONd : 6 3LON

(po1E)s asivuaylo se jdaoxa 'syye] saadny U sjunowe |iy)
207 U218\ L€ 03AN3 QORIAd IHL ¥Od SINIWILYLS TVIONVYNIL 40 L8Yd ONINEOL4 STLON

(£801900Ld¥66)70668%2N -2 NID

pajIWI 81EAld BIPU| BWELO



Oriflame India Private Limited
CIN :- U748389D1 1994PTC061083

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

{All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

9¢. Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP)- ageing details

' Particulars i
! Less than 1|
| year[
Projects in progress
as at 31 March 2024 =
as at 31 March 2023 144,00

Amount in CWIP for a period of

More than 3|
years

2-3 years

=

1-2 years

There is no Capital work in progress whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared lo its original plan

Particulars

As at
31 March, 2024

10. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET}
Opening Balance
Deferred Tax creditf {charge) for the Year

Closing Balance *

* for components of net Deferred {ax assets (refer note 32)

11. LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
{Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Value added tax (paid under protest)

- Considered doubtiul

Less: Aliowance for doubtful value added tax (Refer nate 34)

Slamp Duty paid under protest

Advance income tax [net of pravision for iax Rs. 5,752,27 Lakhs (Previous year

Rs. 5,751.59 Lakhs))
Total

Total |

144 00

As at
31 March, 2023

1.837.39 1,720.66
428.56 116.73
2,265.95 1,837.39
238,06 238.06
(238.06) (238.06)
49.92 48.92
1,360.40 1,206.25
1,410.32 1,255.17

No loans and advances are due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally or joinlly with any

other persons, or amount due by firms or private companies respeclively in which any director is a paitner, a director or a member

There are no loans and advances to related parties.

12, OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
.(Unsacured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Bank fixed deposits (pledged wilh bank)
Security Deposits
Considered good
Considered doubtiul
Less: Allowance for doubtful security deposit

Total

167.02 2.16
564.61 784,16

67.59 108.89
(67.59) (108.89)
731.63 786.32
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Oriflame India Private Limited
CIN :- U74899DL1394PTC061083 I

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024
{All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 21323

13. INVENTORIES

{Valued al cost cr net realisable value, whichever is iower)

Raw Materials 2 673.01 2,328.59
Add: Goods in transit 440.76 745.93
Less: Provision for cbsolete/slow moving inventory {367.74) (252 28)
Total (A) ' 2,745.03 2,822.24
Work-In-Progress 148.69 96.49
Total (B} 148.69 96.49

Finished Goods

Manufactured 1.765.51 2,861.56
Slock in trade 2,784.27 4,960.82
Add: Goods in transit 240.58 802.21
Less: Provision for obsolete/slow moving inventary (1,226.69) (991.32)
Total (C) 1,563.67 7,633.27
Total Inventories (A+B+C) 6,458.39 10,552.00

13.1 Detail of raw materials {(gross of provision}

Chemical and perfumes 1.805.12 1.647.80
Packing maternial 1.308.65 1,426.72
Total (a) 311377 3,074,52
13.2 Detail of work in progress

Cosmetics 148,69 96.45
Total (b) , 148.69 96.49
13.3 Detail of manufactured finished goods and stock-in-trade (gross of

provision) .

Cosmetics and others 4,790.36 8,624,59
Total (c) 4,790.36 ,624.59
Total 8,052.892 11,795.60

14, TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Unsecured)
- Considered good * 1,665.68 2,178.59
~ Considered doubtful ' 103.60 66.56
Less: Provision for doublful debts (103.60) (66.56)
Total 1,665.69 2,178.59

* 14,1 includes receivable from related pariies (refer nole - 36¢)
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Oriflame India Private Limited
CIN :- U74899DL1984PTCO06108B3 )
NOTLS FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

(Al amounts in Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

14.2 Trade Receivables ageing schedule

.‘ Particulars Unhilled1 Not Due Outstanding As At 34st March 2024 [CY) for following periods from due
| | _ date of payment |
: ' Less than 6 monlhs| 1-2years 2-3 years . More than Tnta!!
| } & Months -1 year | 3 years 4
[ | , | | :
- 1l i R U . J 1 L = ;
Undispuled Trade receivables
(i} — considered good ‘
| As at 31 Marc?[]?l e ' 1.114.63 ! 502(23- 48.83 ] . - - ] ses,sgl
|- As at 31 March 2022 =} _ﬂlg_ - 634.% L 7785 | 18,52‘ o _25.94 o 42_5.28 ) E *.'IBASQL
{ii) — considered doubful N B B
- As al 31 March 2;4 i - - [ - 39.14 13.08 19_55lI 3.00‘ 28 D?] - 103‘50..
As at 31 Marih?.%___ L _E- 17.01 8.90 l0,52_| 29& - 01_3 i 66.55
.DISpul_ed Trad;:e?eivables
(i} — considered good
As al 31 March 2024 B . - - . . . -
As al 31 March 2023 i - . 5
{if) — considered daubtful
As al 31 March 202;1 _ . - . I_ ~ = i
As at 31 March 2023 . - . A 2 : . 5
Provision for doublful debls
l o A; at 31 MarcTZEtt- i . 1 . : (39.14)_ o (13.08)“— (19.55]]_ (5.8(_)). - _(28.02j - {103.59)
As al 31 March 2023 : ; (17.01} (8.90) {10.52) (29.89) {0.23) (66.55)
Total
o As at 31 March 2024 N :,114.63 502.23 48.83 - | - - _1_,665,59
As at 31 March 2023 . 994,96 634,94 77.85 19.52] 26.94 425,28 2,178.59

14.3 No irade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company eilher severally or jointly with any other person.
Nor any lrade receivables are due from firms or privale compeanies respeclively in which any director is a partner, a director or a
member,
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Criflame India Private Limited
CIN ;- U74899DL1994PTCO6T083

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

{All amounts In Rupees Lakiis, éxcepl s ol

Particulare

15. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Others (balance with online payment gateway)
Bank Balances:
On Current Accounts
Bank deposits with original maturity of 3 months
Total (A)

Other Bank balances

Bank deposits due to malure within 12 months from the reporting date (pledged
with banks)

Total (8)

Total (A + B)

16. SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Prepaid Expenses
Duty drawback
Advances to vendors
Total (A)

Balance with Govemment Authorities
(i) Goads and Service Tax
{ii) Excise Duty
- Considered doubtful
Less: Provision for advance Excise Duty (refer Note 34)
(i) Advance Custom duly
- Considered good
{iv) Advance custom duty
(v) Special additional duty receivable
- Considered doubtful
Less: Provision for Special additional duty receivable (refer Nole 34)
Total (B)

Tolal (A+B)

As at

31 March, 2024

As at
31 March, 2023

2.16
402 23 347 29
1,832.71 1,153.15
3 400.00
5,634.94 1,502.60
163.86
< 163.86
5,634.94 1,666.46
115.14 150,14
295,26 218.70
173.69 252,43
585.09 629.27
1687.66 1,148.48
14.73 14.73
(14.73) (14.73)
43.24 43.24
26.17 52.10
1,080.10 929 54
{1,080.10) (929.54)
1,757.07 1,243.82
2,342.16 1,873.09

16.1 No loans or advances are due from directors or other officers of lhe company either severally or joinlly with any other persan.

Nor any loans are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any directar is a pariner, a director or a member

There are no loans and advances ta related parlies,
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Oriflame India Private Limited
CIN :- U74839DL1994PTC061083

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated}

There are no loans and advances (o related parties.

Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023

17. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

{Unsecured, considered good)

Security Deposits B 192.98

Interest accrued on fixed deposils N 1.50
Other Receivables (Amount recoverable from third party agents-Cash collected 14,43 56.68
on our behalf}

Total 210.52 58.19

18 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of products

Manufactured goods 32,138.71 33,503.61

Traded goods 10,831.36 16,849.05
Sale of services

Marketing support services 308.31 107.50
Other operating revenues

Scrap sales 22,75 38.67

Export incenlives 82.50 124.74

Others 130.45 180.53

Total 43,515.08 50,804.10

Details of revenue
{a) Details of revenue from sales of products - Manufactured goods
Cosmetics and others 32,138.71 33,503.61
32,138.71 33,503.61

(b) Details of revenue from sales of products - Traded goods

Cosmelics 9,709.14 15,264.75
Accessodes and others 1,122,222 1,584.30
Total {b) 10,831.36 16,849.05
Total (a)+(b) 42,970.07 50,352.66

19 OTHER INCOME

Interest (ncome

- from fixed deposits 8.97 10.52

- from others 0.87 9.26
Others

Gain on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment [net] 28.81 12.45

Gain on foreign exchange Iransaclions [net] 90,91 232.80

Liabilities / provisions no longer required wrilten back 33.60 128,80

Total 163.16 394.83
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Oriflame India Private Limited
CIN :- U74899DL1994PTC061083

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

{All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Particulars

20 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Raw materials and packing materials
Inventary at \he begining of the year
Agdd: Purchases of raw malerial and packing material
Less: Inveniory at the end of the year

Cost of raw materials and packing materials consumed

{a) Details of cost of material consumed
Chemical and perfumes

Packing material

(b) Particulars of raw materials and packing materiats consumed
Indigenous: Percenlage 52% (Previous Year 57%)

Imported: Percentage 48% (Previous Year 43%}

21 PURCHASES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE
Purchase of stock-in-trade
Total

Details of purchase of stock in trade

Cosmetics and others

Packing material

22 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK IN PROGRESS AND
STOCK-IN-TRADE

Opening Stock
Closing Stock
Net change in finished goods

Closing inventory*
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

Stock-in-trade

Opening inventory®
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

Stock-in-trade

Net decrease / (increase)*

* excluding provision for obsolete / slow moving inventory

21| Page

For the year ended
31 March, 2024

For the year ended
31 March, 2023

3,074.52 3,129,156
8.036.90 8.823.04
(3,137 (3.074,52)
7,997.65 8,877.67
3,407.43 4,775.25
4,580.22 4,102.42
7,997.65 8,877.67
4,105.27 5.017.28
3,802.38 3,860.39
7,997.65 8,877.67
5,540.20 9,374.34
5,540.20 9,374.34
5317.77 9,374.34
222.43 .
5,540.20 9,374.34
8,621.25 7.471.06
(4,839.05) (8,621.25)
3,682.20 {1,150.19)
(148.69) (96.49)
(1.765.51) (2 861.56)
(3,024.85) (5.663.20)
{4,939.05) (8,621.25)
96.49 91.69
2,861.56 2.568.21
5.663.20 4,811.16
8,621.25 7,471.06
3,682.20 ($,450.13)




Oriflame India Private Limited

CIN :- U74899DL1994PTC061083

Particulars

23 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

a. Salaries wages and bonus

b Contributicn to provideni and olher funds (Refer note 5 A)

¢ Gratuity (Refer note 5 B)

d Compensated absences (Refer note 5 C)

e. Staff welfare expenses

Total

24 FINANCE COSTS

Interest on dues to Micro and Small enterprises suppliers

Total

25 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

Depreciation on property, plant and equipments (Refer note 9a)

Amorlisatfon of intangible assets (Refer nole 9b)

Total

26 OTHER EXPENSES

Consumption of stares and spare parts

Power and fuel

Rent (Refer Note 29)
Repair

- building

- machinery

- others

Business promotion

Rates and faxes

Travelling and conveyance

Legal and professional

Auditor Remuneration {refer note 26.1)

Freight outward

Printing and stationery cost
Postage and lelephone
Computer expenses

Awards/ incentives
Advertisement

Packing cost

Bank charges

Insurance

Raoyalty

Selling and distribution expenses
CSR expenditure (refer note 38)
Provision for other litigations

Inventory written off (A)

- L<
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For the year ended
34 March, 2024

For the year ended
31 March, 2023

4 389,63 4,238.00
279.23 262.10
45.95 52.24
11376 150.51
313.05 326.81
5,141.62 5,079.66
1.27 3.49
1.27 3.49
686.88 742.03
19.37 21.78
706.25 763.89
53.51 47.31
266.28 220,74
1,840.95 1.833.84
11.03 2.00
25.82 29.93
18272 614.90
3,139.73 3,114.19
20.88 14,73
442,40 540,56
400.63 500.29
27.25 38,85
1,813.45 2,647.63
508.25 1,084.00
68.85 126.65
1.176 24 1,323,12
311.03 802.85
184 20 351.44
197.12 389.84
268.58 409.98
199.01 169.56
2122.34 2,557.79
8.758.32 9,685.59
8.53 141,13

- 100.00

91.02 472.57




Oriflame India Private Limited
CIN :- U74898DL1994PTC061083

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

{All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

| egs: Invenlory written off agains! provision already crealed (B) 3 {376 59)
Net inventnry writen off (A-R) 91.02 95 98
Pravision for obsclete/ slow moving inventcry 486.25 767.92
Bad debls written-oft 621.83 13.21
Securily deposits writlen off 2.81 12.67
Miscellaneous expenses 98.92 502.09
Total 23,327.95 28,538.77

26.1 Payment to auditors {exclusive of Goods and Service Tax)

I
Particulars

26.2 Particulars of consumption of stores and spare parts

For the year ended . Forthe year ended ;
- L 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Aia_ui!ilor - .
r for statutory a_udiL - | . 23,00_ - 32 00_
- for olher services - tax audit - [ 2.00 5.00
- for cut of pockel expenses . R 215 - _1A85_I
 Total — S - - 27.25 | o 38.85

Particulars |r As at 31 March, As at 31 March,

. N . _ . j 2024 1 2023
Indigenous. Percentage 79% (Previous Year 91%) L 42.27 ' 42.96
Imporied: Percentage 21% (Previous Year 9%) - i B 11.24 4,35

 Total - - 53.51

47,31
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Oriflame India Private Limited
CIN ;- U74899DL1954PTC061083

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

{All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)
27 CIF Value of Imports

Particulars

Raw Malerial*
Traded Goods**
Tolal

* includes goods in transil Rs 440,76 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 745,93 Lakhs)

** includes goods in transit Rs, 240,58 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 802.21 Lakhs)

28 Earnings and expenditure in Foreign currency

For the year ended F
31 March, 2024 |

3‘13&56]
2,251‘471
5,390.03

or the year ended

31 March, 2023

3,916.03
4511421

|
8,927.45 |

)|

[ N_at:re:f u;ar:sactiion ) ] For the year endedq For the year ended
— - S . - 31 March, 20241 _ 31 March, 2023
Sale of goods: Exports on FORB basis 6,391.04 4,400.66
.Sale of services 308.31 R R 107.50 .
Total Earnings in foreign Cun;ency - 6,700,235 4,508_.16
R—oyal_l;_ - o - o - 2,122.34 B 2_,557,7_9_
Computer expenses o o 1,140.89 1,25;.,7?
Business Promation” o 81.80 34.57
Printing and siationery cost - 247.09 344.11
Travelling and Conveyance o - 10.16 ) n 11.94
e 16.09 7.90
Bank Charges - | - 0.81 - 1.5_1.
'F;ostage and Telephor: - ] .—001 o OAOZI“
Insurance - ESG__ _ _17 f;_
Salary, Wages and Bonus - 55_.5_7 1&1_
.l_Re_pa-ir Machinery o o 0,71 - 2,29-
Advertisement - 21.27 - _2;0_.
.Miscellaneous o 0.79 1.24
.a;‘sumplion of siores and sparés 11.38 4.35
".Total expendiar; foreign currency - 3,728.47 4,363.00
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Oriflame India Private Limited
CIN ;- U74883DL1994PTC061083

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

(AN amounts in Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

29 Leases (as a lessee)

30

The Nompany has lsken warehnises and affices far branch activiles on lease. Such leases have a renewa! and / or escalation

clause and are in (he nalure of operaling lesses

5) The total of future minimum lzase payments in respect nf leasms entered under non - cancellable period of operaling leases is

as under:

= 2
Particulars

Not later than one year

Later than one year but not later than five years

} More than five years

{
I Total

b) Lease Payments recognised in the statemenl of profit and loss in respect of all

Rs, 1,833.84 Lakhs)

Derivatives instruments and un-hedged cutrency exposure

a) The Company's exposure in respect of foreign currency denominaled liabilities and assels not hedged as

and March 31, 2023 by derivative instrurnents or other-wise are as follows:

As at 31 March, 2024|

jeases: - Rs

1.100 04 |
1.612.45 |

556 3el

3,268.87 |

- 2 3
As at 31 March, 2023

1.770.76
4.968 73
811.73

7,551.22

1.840.95 lakhs (Previous year:

on March 31, 2024

rP;rticulars T Currency Amount in Foreign Equivalent indian -]
e e S ] Currenty (Lakhis)] Rupees {Lakhs} |
As on 31-03-2024
Trade Payable - o usD 1.30 108.41
EUR - _Q,BG 3.322,58 |
I GEP _ -0(06 5.90_
Trade Reccivables EUR 16.21 1,460.77
As on 31-03-2023 o -
H;rade Payable UusoD 4.3; __ 359.13
- - EUR - —m_22.59 2,01 9.66.—
I - SEK i B 0.77 608.44
Trade Receivahies EUR 041‘;_ o 9.42
eeP . : o4
uso - - 24,97 _ B _1%2_10

b} The company did not have any derivative instruments during the year,
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Oriflame India Private Limited
CIN :- 1U74893DL1994PTC061083

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, excepl as otherwise stated)

31 Earnings Per Share

Basic and diluted eamings pér equity share have been compuled by dading nel profit atvibulable lo equily shareholders by the

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for tha year

Particutars

Nominal Value per share

32

Particulars

Difference betwe
and Companies Act, 2013

_consultant bonus and others

Provision for doubtful debts

Provision for expenses

Provision for inventory

Taotal

Forthe year ended 31| For the year ended !
B B _ March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Profit(Loss) afler lax as per Statement of Profil and Loss (s} _ {2.2087 52) (27;09)
Weighl;/\verage Number ol_Equily Shares- Basic (b} - o 79 896.215 79.896.216
TVelghled A_verage Number of E£quity Shar(-:-s_ Diluled (c) R - - 79 896.216 - 79 8Y96.216
. Basic Earnings per share (a/b) - (2.886) . - (0.34) [
E)iluled Eamings per share (al? {2.86) {0 34)
o - o 10.00 - 10.00
The components of Deferred Tax assets are as follows:
P o N o _Fz;the y;ar ended. s For the year ;;i—e(;"
o B ) . 31 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023 |
en written down value of PPE as per Income-tax Act, 1951 198.69 247.03
_@enditure allowed on paymetit baisis — B o N S I 15.91
Provision for VAT, Advance Custom Duty and Special Additioral Duty on 47473 408.38
. I 21.27 o 16.75
Provision for lease equalisation reserve N 113.42] 105.32
____ - S - 859.74 514.8;
- - S 40; Zi _31 2,95
Provision for employee t;eneﬂls o i a 179.80 1 86_.73
Provision for securily deposit _ - R 17:(:_'1. [ - 27.-40I
- . ) | 2,265.95 I 1,837.39‘

The Company has incuired losses in the currenl year. However, management has recognized deferred tax asset as subsequent
lo the year end, the Company has started earning profits againsl which exisling deferred lax assets can be utilized. However, as a
maller cf prudence, management has not recognized deferred lax assels on carry forward losses and deprecialion since lhe

Company may nol have sufficient taxable profils to realise the same.

Particulars

As At 31st March

As At 31st March

As At 31st March

As At 31st March

1 2024 Gross | 2024 2023 Gross 2023
Amount Unrecognised‘ Amount Unrecognised
e eEmE—— . - _ Tax effect S _Taxeffect
Deductible temporary differences -
Tax losses (5495.23) (149.81)

26 | Page




Oriflame India Private Limited
CIN :- U74899DL1994PTC061083

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

(Al amounts in Rupees Lakhs, xcept as otherwise stated)
33 Contingent Liabilities and commitments

Particulars

a) Contingent Liabilities
[ Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt [refer note (i)]
Industrial relations under dispute 1

: Custom Authorities

[ Other indirecl iaxes relaled liabilities

| Direcl taxes

Total

* Represents amount provided on sccount of low probability with various tax authorities

As at 31 March, 2024 As at 31 March, 2023

]

[
|
-
9,00 864
1,677.44 163325
5,628.48 | 659 92
d| i
842,39 | -|
8,157.31) 2,301.81

(i) Maliers are subject to legal proceedings and claims which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. The Company does
not reasonably expect thal, these legal claims when ultimately concluded and detennined, will have a malerial and adverse effects

on the Company's resulls of operation or financial condition.

(i) (@) The amount shown above represent the besl possible estimates arrived al on lhe basis of information available with the

management

(b) The uncertainties relating fo amounts and the timing of any outflows are dependenl on the outcome of the different cases and

therefore, can not be predicled accurately.
(c) The Company does not expect any reimbursement against any of these claims.

b) Commitments

Capital Expendilure conlracted for al the end of lhe reporting period net of capital advence but not recognised as liabilities: Rs.Nil

(Previous year Rs. Nil )
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Oriflame India Private Limited
CiN :- U74899DL.1994PTC061083

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

{All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)
35 Segment reporting Disclosure
The Company has considored the business segment as a primary repolting segment on the basis that the risk and relurms of the
Company s prmanly determined by lhe nature of product and services, Cutiseguently, e geogigphical  segaent has  been
conaidecad as a secondary segment,
The business segment have been idenlified on the basis of the nature of product and services. ‘he risks and tetuins nternal
organisation and management struclure and the managerment reponing system,
The management has determined the following business segments:

« Manufacluring and Tradirig of Cosmetics and Beauty products ( 'MTCB');
« Manufacturing of Wellness producls (MWP')

Geographical segment is considered based on sales "within [ndia" and "ouiside India", according to the location of customers.

Segment Accounting policies

The accounting principles consislenlly used in the preparation of lhe Financial statemenis are applied to record revenue and
expenditure in individual segments as sel out in note 2 to these financial stalemenis on Significant accounting policies. Further
there are no Inter-segment transaciion among each of the segments. The accounting policies in relation to segment accounling
are as under:

{a) Segment assets and liabilities '
All segment assels and liabilities have been allocated to the various segments on the basis of specific identification.

Segment assels consist principally of allocable PPE lrade receivables, loans and advances and unibilled receivables. Segment
assets do not include unallocated corporate assels, cash and bank, advance taxes and deferred taxes.

Segment liabilities include lrade payable, other liabilities and provisions. Segment liability do not include share capital, reserves
and provision for taxes.

{b) Segment revenue and expenses

Segment revenue is directly allributable to the segment and segment expenses have been allocated lo various segments on the
basis of specific identification. However, segmen: revenue does not include interest income.

Segmenl expenses do nol include corporate expenses and finance cost. -
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Oriftame India Private Limited
CIN :- U74899DL1994PTC061083

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

36

The disclosure as required by the AS-18 (Related party disclosure) are given below:

a) Mame of the refated party and nature of their relationship

| MNamalRelation

1 Where cantrol exists

(@)

Ultimate Holding Company

Oriflare Partners Limited, Jersey

(b} Interme_di_ale Holding E:gmpany S B
Oriflame Holding Limited, Jersey )

& Holding Company _ o .
Oriflame Investments Limited. Mauritius - -

2 Other_rele‘:ted parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Fellow Subsidiary

)

Qriflame Cosmelics Global S.A. Luxembourg

CETES Cosmetics AG, Switzerland

Oriflame Software S.R.0, Czech Republic

Oriflame Lanka (Private) Lid, Sri Lanka

CETES Cosmetics Poiand Spz oo

Oriflame Cosrnetics AB, Sweden

Oriflame Cosmetics AG, Switzerand

Oriflame Cosmelics Global Ple Ltd, Singapore

Oriflame Research And Development LId, Iretand

PT Orindo Alam Ayu, Indonesia

Oriflame Vietnam Limiled

Oriflame Cosmelics Pakistan (Privale) Lid. Pakistan

CETES Cosmetics LLC

{b)

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Manjit Singh Bawa - Wholetime Direclor

Mr. Frederic Sebastian Nikodemus Widell - Managing Director (till 10 October 2023)

Ms. Edyta Bogumila Kurek - Managing Direclor (w.e.f. 21 March 2024)

Mr. Sitaraman Subramanian - Wholetime Direclor

Mr. Karan Mehra - Company Secretary (tilt 1 May 2024)

Ms. Jigyasa Gulati - Company Secretary (w.e.f. 19 July 2024)

b) Related Party Transactions during the year

Nature of transaction

Sales of goods

For the year ended

31 March, 2024 I

For the year ended1
31 March, 2023

To fellow subsidiaries

Criflame Cosmetics Global S.A. | Luxembourg

Oriflame Cosmelics (China) Co Ltd,, China

CETES Cosmelics Poland Sp. z 0.0.

2,924.07

Oriflame Cosmetics Global Pte. Ltd, Singapore

Oriflame Research and Develcpmen! Lid. [reiand

Total

5.387.31 -
o i e 0.97
= 0.80
' B . 1,472.98
D x s
- | - 6-,391404”__ o © 4,400.67
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Oriflame India Private Limited
CIN :- U74839D1L1994PTC061083

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Nature of transaction

For the year ended |
31 March, 2024 |

For the year ended
31 March, 2023 |

| Sales of services = |
) To fel.low subsidiaries - = _’!

Oriflame Lanka-Privale Limited S_ri La;ka_ - 2148 -_ 60 5_9

PT Orim.iloAlam Ayu 216.68 30 19

aiiﬁame Vietnam L;'miled - B o - o7nasy 16.72 1

Tot_al . o - 309.31 I B 107.50
_Purcrﬂg;Lds { e;cw—din_g custom duty_) - I - —
_F_rom Fellow subsidiaries - - ___ - N . . o |

Orifiame Cosmetics Global S..AT, Luxembourg __ — - 1,972.64 - 3,03&_17
__CETES Cosmetics AG Sw:z&;a; - —— 1,107.38 1,079 41

Oriflame CosTelics_Global Pte. Ltd_ o o - e . 34.90 |

(EE_EFE_S Cosmelics LLC N i - 7577
__:_Total __ __ - - 3,079.99 4,228.25 i

Computer Expenses o a - - . .

To Fellow subsidiaries

Oriflame SLﬂw_aiS,R.O, Czech Republic 1.140.8% 1,254.79
_lolal 1,140.89 | 1,254.7%

Printing and stationery cost o - . N ]
_7_'0—Fello;/ s_ubsid_iaries . - ___ - IL_ B

Oriflame Cosmetics AB, Sweden - 247.09 | 34411

Tot'al - o - o i 247.09 | __ 344_.11_

|
S—— =

Royalty S——
?J_Fellow subsidiaries_ o

ﬁame Cosmetics ;G, Swilzerland 2,122_..34 i 2.5_57.7;

Total o 2,122.34

2,557.7%

Reimbursement of expenses incurred by the company on behalf of
| related party

Fellow subsidiaries

Oriflame Cosmetics Global S.A. , Luxembourg

Qriflame Cosmetics (China) Co Ltd., China

CETES Cosmetics Poland Sp. z 0.0.

PT Orindo Alam Ayu

Criflame Research and Development Ltd, ireland

Oriflame Cosmetics Global Ple. Ltd, Singapore

Total

P . JZ‘ CE:.Q

N
A

/( I -~

[ %] \

[ —

l:‘j:f\ g,‘/l/' j'{‘l-’l

L K ’ P
e /
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Oriflame India Private Limited
CIN :- U74899DL1994PTC061083

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

{All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

1
! Salary, wages and 8onus

! To Fellow subsidiaries

I Oriﬂin@melics AG, Swilzerland - a 5.73 I (3.25}
; Total B _ — . = | ——— 5.7_3_I_ P = (3425)_
. R o | :
i Reimbursement of expenses incurred by related party on behalf of the .
Company ——— = e — — S —— —_—
ITo—Fello_n;J subsidiaries N - R | R —
| Orifisme Cosmetics AG, Switzerland - - | o 18
;_Cﬁiﬂame Cosmetics Global S.A. , Luxembourg 8_96 09 B 546 92
. Oriﬂ;m_e La;\ka Private Limiled, Sri Lanka ) B B . ) : — 0.88
| Total - S ) - - 896.08 | §49.35
Inter company balances write off - . | o
_ Oriflame [ anka Private Limited, Sri Lanka o B - 140.51 7.07
Oriflame Cosmelics_Pakista_n(_Pﬂvaia)Ed_,Pakistan - 447.04 - _=
Total _ - I B 587.2 A 7.07
ﬂcompany balances write back - -
Oriflame Lanka Private _Lirnited, Sri Lanka . A 6,93
Oriflame Cosmetics AB, Sweden - N - .12
Oriflame Cosme(ic_s Gl_obal S.A. , Luxembourg - - B o - N 43‘86_
| Total _-_ - 53.91_
Managerial R_’emuneration‘ o - ]
Manjit Singh Bawa I — 122,80 123.75
N_Silararnan Subramanian_ N I 140.90 137.1?
ﬂad;k: Sebaslian Nikodernus Widell - 285,30 383.31
Edyta Bogumila Kurek ) o - I . 57.49 _-
o T - 606.59 ____ h ‘_644.21_

* remuneralion does nol include gratuity/leave encashment 2s it is done for all the employees as a whole.

553

Y
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Oriflame India Private Limited
CIN :- U74899DL1994PTC061083

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

c) Balarces outstanding at the year end
I Particulars

Trade payables
?ﬁe-lgw s_ubsi@s_ .
QOriflame Cosmelics Global S.A. , Luxembourg
Oriflame Cosmegzs A;Sw;den -

CETES Cosnzetics LLC
Qriflame Soﬂwa_re S.R.0, Czech_Republic

CETES Cosmetics AG, Swilzerland

Oriflame Cosmetlics AG, Switzerland

Total

Trade receivables

From Feliow subsidiaries
Oriflame Cosmelics Global S.A. , Luxembourg
Qrillame Cosmetics {China) Co. Lid., China

ORIFLAME VIETNAM LIMITED

T r

As at 31 March, 2024

As at 31 March, 2023

= t

Oriflame i anka (Pvtﬂtd, Sri Lanka

Oriflame Cosmetics Pakislan (Privale) Lid. Pakistan

PT ORINDO ALAM AYU, Indonesia

Total

37 Transfer Pricing:

— 4,273.40 2,888 63
-i Ctoses | 118.33 |
8485

hE 283 30 §34.64
| 195.87 507 62 |

2,818.26 1,151.96

B 7,677.48 5,386.26

_~__ C aseear| 1,312.80

DN | ——

86.41 | 1505

137.49

B B 443 39

28.96

1,460.77 1,938.69

As per the Transfer pricing norms, the Company is required 10 use cenain specific methods in computing arm's length pdce of
intermational transaclions between lhe associaled enterprises and maintain prescribed informalion and documents relaled 1o such
transactions. The appropriate method lo be adopled will depend on the nature of transactionsiclass of transactions, class of
associated person. funclions performed and other faclors, which have been prescribed, The, Transfer pricing study for the financial
year ending March 31, 2024 is in progress and accordingly, the relaled adjusiment, if any, can be quantified only upon completion
of this study. However, based on the self-assessment of the transaclions by the manangement during lhe year, lhe Management
does nol expect any maitedal impact on the Company's financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 on account of lhe

aforesaid study.
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Oriflame India Private Limited
CIN - U748399DL1994PTC061083

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

38 Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities:
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 read with guidelines issued by the Depariment of Public Enterprises (DPE}. the
Company is required to spend, in every financial year, al least lwo per cent of the average nel profits of the Company made
during the three immedialely preceding financial years in accordance wilh ils CSR Pulicy The disclosure in respect of CSR
aclivities for the year are as under:

h Particulars For the year ended Forthe year ended
_31 March, 2023

' (a) Amaunt required 10 be spenl by the company during the year, *” - 14113
I {b) Amounl spent during the year on-

| (i) Corslruclion / acquisition of any asset,

(i) On purposes other_than (iliboveL - 1 - B 8.53 141.13 |
(c) Shorlfall ! (excess) al lhe end ol the year, *** - _; (8.53) - 0
(d) Total of previous years shortfall, - - — - - - 3,‘:2‘3 ‘_
{e) Reason for shortfall N N/A B - N/A
.(f)_Nature of CSR a_cTivilies, o . T P_rcmoling educaEalﬂ Promating educalional_
| S o _ sclivities| aclivilies
(g) Details of relaled party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust NIL NIL

controlied by lhe company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant
Accounling Standard, a I —

(h) Where a provision is made with respect Lo a liability incurred by NIL NIL
enlering inlo a contractual obligation, the movermenls in the provision
_during the year should be shown separately,

(i) The shortfall amount {i.e unspent amount), in respect of other than NIL NIL
ongoing projects, lransferred to a8 Fund specified in Schedute Vi to the
Act. as per seclion 135(5) of the Act.

* The Company had contributed Rs.3.98 lakh in year ended March 31, 2023 towards PM Cares Fund.

*> The requirement as slipulated by the provisions of Sectlion 135 are not applicable in the cuirent financial year.

*** The excess amount ¢can be set off against the required 2% CSR expenditure up to (he immediately succeeding three financial
years subject 1o compliance with the condilions stipulated under rule 7(3) of the Companies (CSR Policy) Rules. 2014.
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Oriflame India Private Limited
CIN :- U74899DL1 994P_TC061 083 B . - . §
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCJAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

39 Additional Regufatory information in accordance schedule Il if the Act

(A) Analytical Ratios

- _ - IR . . ) . .
I t
| Ratio Numerator Denominator For the For thei Variance Reason for Variance® |
| | year| year, [¥3) |
| ended as|  ended as| |
‘ | al 31 at 31|
| | I March March |
|1 RN ——=——— =N | W N, al= — 2024 2023 = = —
| Currenl Ratio |Current Assets | Currenl .i 1.02] 1.19 (14 29}1
B Liabilities | | -
| Debl-Equity Ratio Tolal Debt Shareholder's NA NA
! equity — M— X
| Debt Service Coverage | Eamings Debt Service NA NA
Ralio available for
- debt sarvice e —F i
Return on Equity Ratio Net Profits Average (24.85) (2.63) B49.67| Decrease in ratio is due to
after taxes Shareholders increase in losses of the
equity current year as compared to
| —_— —— ) _y | previousyear ——
| Inventory turnover ratio Cost of Goods | Average 2,02 1.69 19.53
| I _ |sod ___[Inventory — = i e — i
Trade Receivatles Net Credit Average 22.64 25.66 (11.77)
i turnover ratio Sales Accounts
Receivable I o
Trade payables turnover Net credit Average Trade 2.84 428 (33.64)| Increase in ratio is due lo
ratio purchases Payables decrease in purchases of the
(viz. current year as compared to
purchases and previous year
other relevant
L____ eXpenses) o _
Netl capital wurnover ratio Net Sales Average 29,82 16.80 77.50| Decrease in rativ is due to
Working Capital decrease in sales of the
current year as compared to
| . - __ | previous year |
Net profit ralia Net profit Net Sales (5.26) (0.54) 874.07| Decrease in ratio is due o
increase in losses of the
cutrent year as compared to
R — L previous year :
Return on Capital Earning before | Capital (33.88) (2.76) 1,126.81| Decrease in ratio is due to
employed interest and Employed increase in losses of the
laxes currenl year as compared o
S : J.previous year =
Relurn on investment Net Income Cost of NA NA
= . = __|Investment ; ——

* Reason provided where variances is more than 25% as per the requirements of lhe Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2613

(B) The Company does not have any transactions and balances with companies which are struck off.

(C) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (eilher from borrowed funds aor share premiuny or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any alher person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign enliies {’Inleimediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in wriling or olherwise, that lhe Intermediary shall, whether. direclly or indireclly lend or invest in
ather persons or entilies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on bebalf of the Company (“Ultimale Beneficiaries”) or provide
any quarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ullimate Beneficiaries

(D) No funds have been received by lhe Company from any person(s) or entity{ies), including loreign entities (‘Funding Parties”),
with the underslanding, whether recorded in writing or olherwise, that lhe Company shall, whether, direclly or indireclly, lend or
invest in other persons or entilies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ullimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, securily or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
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Oriflame India Private Limited
CiN :- U74899DL1994PTC061083

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

(E) No proceedings have been initialed or pending agsinst the Company fur holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and the rules made thereunder during the current year as well as in previous year

(F) There are no lransactions nat recorded in the books of accounts that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during

the year in the lax assessmenls under the income tax 1961

(G) The Company has not traded or invested in cryplo currency or any vinual currency during the current or previous year

(H) The Campany has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government

authority

(1) The'group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,

(J) The group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accourling impact on current or previous financial

year,

(K) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promaters, directors and KMPs, either severally

or jointly with any other person.

(L) The Company has not been sanctionred working capital limits from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the

year on the basis of securily of current assets.

(M) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(N) There were no significant adjusting events that occurred subsequent to the reporting period othier than he event disclosed in

relevant notes to accounts

The accompanying notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even dale attached

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn.No.101248W/W-100022

%
ﬁ;ela Kumar

Partner
Membership No. 509822

Place ; Gurugram
Date : 30/09/2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Oriflame India Private Limited

/'.ﬁﬁ))‘)ow
- L

Subramanian S

Edyta Pogumila Kurek
Wholetime Director
DIN: 03208240

anaging Director
DIN: 10558324

-
| Place: New Delhi

. «,er/ Date: 30/09/2024
rd

Jigyasa Gulati
Company Secretary
Membership No. A33052
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